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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At 31 December 2016
(Amounts in SR’000)

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2013

INSURANCE OPERATIONS® ASSETS

Bank balances and cash 7 487,122 595,318
Time deposits 8 225,504 197,790
Policyholders® and reinsurance balanices receivable 9 1,248,478 1,688,147
Investments 13 (a) 28,308 60,224
Due from related parties 10 2,065 72,606
Due from sharcholders® operations 66,600 157,118
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 11 (a) 595,941 671,314
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 15 536,383 713,158
Deferred policy acquisition costs 16 141,336 181,807
Prepayments and other assets 14 163,778 54,851
Property and equipment, net 17 51,155 55,219
TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS' ASSETS 3,546,667 4,447,552
SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents’ 7 211,677 108,912
Time deposits 8 - 96,052
Interest on statutory deposit 28 11,072 7,757
[avestments 13 (b} 146,076 242,014
Prepayments and other assets 14 2,598 1,782
Investment in an associate i2 14,802 12,095
Land 30,000 30,000
Statutory deposit 18 156,000 100,000
Goodwill 19 480,000 480,000
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' ASSETS 1,046,225 1,078,612
TOTAL ASSETS 4,592,892 5,526,164

e

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
As At 31 December 2016
{Amounts in SR’000)

INSURANCE OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

Gross outstanding claims

Due to related parties

Accounts and commission payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Reinsurance balances payable
Surplus distribution payable
Unearned reinsurance commission
Gross unearned premiums

Other reserves

TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES

INSURANCE OPERATIONS' SURPLUS
Cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments

TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND
SURPLUS

SHAREHOLDERS' LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS® LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Interest payable on statutory deposit

Provision for zakat and income tax

Due to insurance operations

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Accumulated (deficit)

Cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES, INSURANCE OPERATIONS’
SURPLUS AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

/

The accompanying notes 1 w/ rm an l egral part of these financial statements.

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015

11 (a) 1,323,956 1,664,788
10 5,643 40,589
123,710 211,837
20 184,354 156,593
86,172 120,216
111,566 106,591
22 36,584 56,315
15 1,629,251 2,054,448
H (b) 45,154 34,350
3,546,390 4,445,727
13 (&) 217 1,825
3,546,667 4,447,552
20 635 762
28 11,072 7,757
25 15,398 844
66,600 157,118
93,708 166,481
26 1,000,000 1,000,000
5 146,135 146,135
(199,101) (249,265)
13 (b) 5,486 15,261
952,520 012,131
1,046,225 1,078,612
4,592,892 5,526,164
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
(Amounts in SR'000)

Gross premiums written
Less: Reinsurance premiums ceded

Excess of loss premiums

NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Change in unearned premiums, net

NET PREMIUMS EARNED

Gross claims paid and other expenses
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims paid
Change in outstanding claims, net
Change in other reserves

NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Policy acquisition costs

Reinsurance commission income

NET UNDERWRITING RESULT

General and administrative expenses

Impairment losses on available for sale investments
Special commission income

Other income

INSURANCE OPERATIONS’

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

Shareholders’ appropriation
from insurance operations’ (surplus) / deficit

Insurance operations’ surplus after shareholders’ appropriation

Surplus share transferred to policyholders®

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes | to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015
5 3,194,334 4,001,934
(482,785) (629,566)
(14,345) (13,853)
2,697,204 3,358,515
248,422 108,798
2,945,626 3,467,313
11 (a) (3,104,021) (3,557.372)
11 (&) 384,371 688,741
265,439 (372,833)
11 {b) (10,804) (27,218)
11 (a) {2,464,995) (3,268,702)
16 (a) {187,685) (227317
22 85,002 110,880
377,948 82,174
23 (396,805) {397,469)
13 (a) {725) -
20,832 5,902
24 48,497 60,173
3 49,747 (249,220)
3 (44,772) 249,220
4,975 -
3 (4,978) -
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INSURANCE OPERATIONS® COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
(Amounts in SR’000)

31 December 31 December
Note 2016 2013

INSURANCE OPERATION’ SURPLUS AFTER 4975 .

SHAREHOLDERS® APPROPRIATION ’
Other comprehensive income / (loss):
Items that may not be reclassified to statement of income in
subsequent year
Impairment loss transferred to statement of income 13 (8) 725 -
Items that may be reclassified to statement of income in
subsequent year
Available for sale investments
Change in fair values 13 (a) 2,273) (19
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /(LOSS) FOR THE

3427 (19
YEAR
i -

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,

6



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts in SR’000)
31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015
INCOME
Shareholders’ appropriation from insurance operations’ surplus / (deficit) 3 44,772 (249,220)
Special commission income 10,304 7,110
Realised gain on sale of available for sale investments 13 () 13,735 774
Dividend income on available for sale investments 711 996
Income from investment in an associate 2,707 6,095
Other income 162 -
72,391 {(234,245)
EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses 23 (4,164) (10,829
Impairment losses on available for sale investments 13(b) (616) {16,193)
(4,780) (27,022)
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 67,611 (261,267)
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSSES) PER SHARE 27 0.68 (2.61)

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
{Amounts in SR’000)

31 December 31 December
Note 2016 2015
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 67,611 (261,267
Other comprehensive income / (loss):
Items that may not be reclassified to statement of income in
subseguent year
Zakat and income tax 25 (a2) (17,447) (7,988)
Impairment loss transferred to statement of income 13 (b) 616 16,193
Items that may be reclassified to statement of income in
subsequent year
Available for sale investments
Change in fair vaiues 3,344 {10,103)
{Gain) transferred to statement of income 13 (b) (13,735) (774)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE 40,389 (263,939)
YEAR
N ‘0 /
e,
-

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
{Amounts in SR*000)

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Insurance operations’ surplus after shareholders’ eppropriation 4,975 -
Adjustments to reconcile insurance operations’ surplus afier shareholders'

apprapriation to net cash (used in) / from operating activities:

Sharcholders’ appropriation from insurance operations” surplus 44,772 -
Depreciation 17 9471 9,073
Special commission income (19,149) (5,892)
Provision for doubtful debts 23 35,000 10,000
Gain on sale of property and equipment, net (135) {90)
Realised gain on available for sale investment 13 (a) (1,683) (10
Impairment losses on available for sale investment 13 (a) 725 -
Cash from operations 73,976 13,081
Changes in operating assets and labilities;
Gross unearned premiums {425,197y (429,291)
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 176,775 320,493
Policyholders’ and reinsurance balances receivable 404,672 {373,097y
Due from related parties 70,541 1,146
Due to related parties (34,946) 12,410
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 75,373 (19,634)
Deferred policy acquisition costs 40,471 18,679
Prepayments and other assets {168,927) (27,640)
Deposit against letters of guarantee (5,437) (6,049)
Gross outstanding claims ) (340,832) 392,487
Accounts and commissions payable (88,127) 31,023
Accrued expenses and other Habilities 27,761 78,348
Reinsurance balances payable (34,044) 36,077
Sharcholders™ appropriation from insurance operations’ surplus (44,772) -
Unearned reinsutance commission (19,731) (17,143)
Other reserves 10,804 27,218
Net cash (used in) / generated from eperating activities {221,640) 58,108
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits (27,714) 29,432
Special commission income 19,149 5,892
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 13 (a) 31,326 37,500
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 163 241
Purchase of property and equipment 17 (5,435) (12,879)
Net cash generated from investing activities 17,489 60,186
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Due from shareholders' operations, net 920,518 (217,992)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activity 90,518 (217,992)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (113,633) {99,698)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 7 574,244 673,942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 7 460,611 574,244

Non-cash transaction:
Change in fair values of available for sale investments 13 (a) (1,548) (19)

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an.i art of these financial statements,
W 10
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
(Amounts in SR’000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (Joss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Special commission income
Dividend income on available for sale investments
Realised gain on sale of available for sale investments
Income on investment in an associate
Impairment losses on available for sale invesiment

Cash from / (used in) operations

Changes in operating ussets and lichilities:
Prepayments and other assets
Accrued expenses and other Habilities

Zakat and income tax paid
Net cash generated from / {used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments
Special commission income
Dividend income on available for sale investments
Increase in statutory deposit
Interest on statutory deposit

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Due (from) / to insurance operations, net

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activity

INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING

OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR

Non-cash transactions:

Change in fair values of available for iﬁelmy

W

31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015
67,611 (261,267)
(10,304) (7.110)
(711) (996)
13 (b} (13,735) (774)
{2,707) (6,00%)
13 (b) 616 16,193
40,770 (260,049)
(816) (103)
3,188 6,127
43,142 6,024
25 {c) (2,893) (26,651)
40,249 {280,676)
96,052 {96,052)
13 (b) 99,282 18,298
10,304 7116
711 996
(50,000) -
(3,315) (375)
153,034 {70,023)
(90,518) 217,992
(90,518) 217,992
102,768 (132,707)
7 108,912 241,619
7 211,677 108,912
13 (b) (9,775) 5316

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

L ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Mediterrancan and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint
Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 1010231925 dated
8 Rabi Thani 1428H (comresponding to 26 April 2007). The registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box
2302, Riyadh 11451, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The objectives of the Company are to transact cooperative
insurance and reinsurance business and related activities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Its principal lines of
business include all classes of general insurance. The Company was listed on the Saudi Arabian Stock Exchange
(Tadawul) on 28 Rabi Al-Awal 1428H (corresponding to 16 April 2007).

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at fair value of
available for sale investments and investment in an associate which is accounted for under the equity method.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB).

As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Company maintains separate accounts for Insurance
Operations and Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial statements accordingly. The physical custody of
all assets related to the Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations are held by the Company. Revenues and
expenses clearly attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of
other revenue and expenses from joint operations is as determined by the management and Board of Directors.

As indicated in Note 33 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company continues to take the necessary
actions as advised by SAMA to comply with the solvency margin. The management of the Company believes that it
will be able to comply with the underlying requirements in the near future through implementation of corrective
action plan as advised by the consultant and approved by the Company's board of directors. Accordingly, these
accompanying financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (Also see Note 33).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, SAMA issued a letter to the Company that highlighted certain
weaknesses in claims processing including non-compliance with legal limits for settling claims and required the
submission of a detailed report regarding the corrective actions taken or to be taken by the management. SAMA
also prohibited the Company from issuing any new motor insurance policies with effect from 29 November 2016.
The Company was however allowed to add vehicles to existing insurance policies and renew insurance policies
issued prior to 29 November 2016. On 22 January 2017, SAMA issued another letter that highlighted certain
additional matters related to claims including ineffectiveness of system used to handle and process claims and
certain actions that needed to be taken by the Company. SAMA also instructed the Company to take serious actions
and provide the detailed plan with procedures and timeframes approved by the Company’s board of directors to
address the current situation. The detailed plan was subsequently submitted to SAMA after approval by the
Company’s board of directors. The Company continues to take the necessary action and believes that it will be able
to resolve the matter in the near future. On 2 March 2017, SAMA permitted the Company to issue new motor
insurance policies effective 5 March 2017 and instructed the Company to submit a monthly report for the actions
taken in regard to the improvement of the current information technology system and the migration process from
old information technology system to the new system.

Functional and presentational currency
The functional and presentational currency of the Company is Saudi Arabian Riyals. The financial statement are
presented in Saudi Riyal rounded to nearest thousand (SAR’000) unless otherwise stated.

12



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

3, SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION

The Company is required to distribute 10% of the net surplus from insurance operations to policyholders and the
remaining 90% to be allocated to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Insurance Law and
Implementation Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”).

The insurance operations’ surplus of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to SR 49,747
thousand (31 December 2015: deficit of SR 249,220 thousand). Accordingly, 90% of insurance operation surplus
amounting to SR 44,772 thousand was transferred to the shareholders' operations for the year ended 31 December
2016, leaving a surplus payable to policyholders of SR 4,975 thousand (31 December 2015: no transfer from
insurance operations to the shareholders’ operations).

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those used in the
preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 except for the adoption of the
following new standards and other amendments to existing standards mentioned below which have had no
significant financial impact on the financial statements of the Company on the current year or prior year and is
expected to have no significant effect in future periods:

New and amended standards issued and adopted

- IFRS 14 — “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”, applicable for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate regulation, to continue applying most of its existing
accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first time adoption of IFRS. The standard does
not apply to existing IFRS preparers. Also, an entity whose current GAAP does not allow the recognition of rate-
regulated assets and liabilities, or that has not adopted such policy under its current GAAP, would not be allowed to
recognise them on first-time application of [FRS.

Amendments to existing standards

-Amendments to IFRS 10 ~ “Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 — “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities” and IAS 28 — “Investments in Associates”, applicable for the annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, address three issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10.
The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to
a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures its subsidiaries at
fair value. Furthermore, only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that
provides support services to the investment entity is consolidated, All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are
measured at fair value. The amendments to IAS 28 allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain
the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries.

-Amendments to IFRS 11 - “Joint Arrangements”, applicable for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, require an entity acquiring an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business, to apply, to the extent of its share, all of the principles in IFRS 3 ~ “Business Combinations”
and other IFRSs that do not conflict with the requirements of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. Furthermore, entities are
required to disclose the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs for business combinations. The
amendments also apply to an entity on the formation of a joint operation if, and only if, an existing business is
contributed by one of the parties to the joint operation on its formation. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that,
for the acquisition of an additional interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes
a business, previously held interests in the joint operation must not be remeasured if the joint operator retains joint
control.

-Amendments to IAS 1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements”, applicable for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, clarify, existing IAS 1 requirements in relation to:

# The materiality requirements in IAS 1
®That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) and the statement of financial position may be disaggregated

®That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial
statements

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The .Medi.terr'ar'}ean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS {Continued)

Amendments to existing standards (Continued)

That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. The amendments further clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented
in the statement of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCL.

- Amendments to 1AS 16 ~ “Property, Plant and Equipment” and TAS 38 — “Intangible Assets”, applicable for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, restricts the use of ratio of revenue generated to total revenue
expected to be generated to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.

- Amendments to 1AS 16 — “Property, Plant and Equipment” and 1AS 41 — “Agriculture”, applicable for the annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, change the scope of IAS 16 to include biological assets that meet the

definition of bearer plants. Agricultural produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of 1AS 41.

In addition, government grants relating to bearer plants will be accounted for in accordance with IAS 20 -
“Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance” instead of IAS 41.

- Amendments to IAS 27 — “Separate Financial Statements”, applicable for the annual periods beginning on or afier
1 January 2016, allows an entity to use the equity method as described in IAS 28 to account for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial statements.

Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 cycle applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
A summary of the amendments is as follows:

-IFRS 5 - “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” , amended to clarify that changing
from one disposal methed to the other would not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of
the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5.

-IFRS 7 - “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has been amended to clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset, The nature of the fee and the arrangement
should be assessed in order to consider whether the disclosures are required under IFRS 7 and the assessment must
be done retrospectively. IFRS 7 has been further amended to clarify that the offsetting disclosure requirements do
not apply to financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant update to the information reported in
the most recent annual report.

-IAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” - amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation
is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.

-1AS 34 - “Interim Financial Reporting” - amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must be
either in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-referencing to the interim financial report {e.g., in
the management commentary or risk report). However, the other information within the interim financial report
must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments and revisions to the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) which have been published and are mandatory for compliance by the Company for the
accounting years beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently assessing their impact.
Following is a brief on the new [FRSs and amendments to IFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or afier
January 1, 2016.

-IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (effective on or after January 1, 2018)

~Amendments to 1AS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (effective on or after January 1, 2017)

-Amendments to JAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (effective on or after January
1,2017)

-Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (effective on or
after January 1, 2018)

~IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from contracts with customers (effective on or after January 1, 2018)

-IFRS 16 - Leases (effective on or after January 1, 2019)

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in preparation of these financial statements:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and at banks and short-term time deposits with an original
maturity of less than three months at the date of acquisition,

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the fair value of the consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets or liabilities
acquired, Goodwill is tested for impairment by management at least once at the end of each financial year.
Impairment for goodwill is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (or a group
of cash generating units) to which the goodwill is related. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(or a group of cash generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit (or a group of cash
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating
to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Land, property and equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment and is not depreciated. Property and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value, Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. Depreciation is charged to the statement of insurance operations and accumulated surplus
on a straight line basis at the following depreciation rates:

Rates
Leasehold improvements 15% - 25%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 10% - 15%%
Computers 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or Joss.

Investments

All investments are initially recognised at fair value, being the fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment except for investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Premiums and discounts are amortized on a systematic basis to their maturity. For investments that are traded in
organized financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to exchange quoted market bid prices at the close
of business on the statement of financial position date without any deduction for transaction costs.

{a) Available for sale investments

Investments which are classified as "available for sale” are subsequently measured at fair value. Available for sale
investments are those investments that are not held to maturity nor held for trading. For an available for sale
investment where the fair value has not been hedged, any unrealized gain or loss arising from a change in its fair
value is recognised directly under insurance operations’ surplus and / or shareholders' comprehensive income until
the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised under
the insurance operations’ surplus and / or shareholders' comprehensive income is included in the statement of
insurance operations and accumulated surplus and / or shareholders' operations for the year. Available for sale
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at amortised cost less impairment provision.

(b) Investments in held to maturity securities

Investments which have fixed or determinable payments that the Company has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity are subsequently measured at amortized cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition. Any gain or loss on such
investments is recognised in the statement of income - shareholders' operations when the investment is
derecognized or impaired.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean arjd Gulf Coopérative insurance émd Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

(c) Investment in an associate

Associates are enterprises in which the Company generally holds 20% to 50% of the voting power and / or over
which it exercises significant influence. Investments in an associates are carried in the statement of financial
position at cost, plus post acquisition changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associate, less any
impairment in the value of individual investments.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with its bylaws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income from shareholders’ operations
each year to the statutory reserve until it has built up a reserve equal o the share capital, The reserve is not available
for distribution,

Impairment and un-collectability of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of shareholders® operations. Impairment is determined as follows:

bl For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between the cost and fair value (fair value
being lower than cost), less any impairment loss previously recognized in the statement of shareholders’
operations

» Far assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between the cost and the present value (present

value being lower than cost) of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset,

» For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is determined based on future cash flows that are
discounted at the original effective special commission rate,

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

Zakat and income tax
Zakat and income tax are provided for in accordance with the Saudi Arabian Zakat and Tax Regulations and are
charged to the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive income,

Special commission income
Special commission income from time deposits is recognized on an effective yield basis,

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established,

Provisians

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past events, and
the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the frade date (i.e. the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
transactions that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides end-of-service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

The accompanying notes | to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Meditérranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Savdi Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the statements of
income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus and shareholders® comprehensive income. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at
the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available
for sale investments are recognised in ‘insurance operations surplus’ in the statement of insurance operations and
other comprehensive income under the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive operations. As the Company’s
foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dollars, foreign exchange gains and losses are not significant,

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense are not offset in the
statement of shareholders’ operations unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation.

Premiums earned and commission income

Premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis, For
engineering construction projects with policy terms in excess of one year, the premium are taken into income
linearly over the policy term. Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the
unexpired period of coverage.

The underwriting results represents premiums earned and fee and commission income less claims paid, other
underwriting expenses and anticipated claims payable in respect of the year, net of amounts subject to reinsurance,
less provision for any anticipated future Josses on continuing policies.

Commission receivable on reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the reinsurance contracts.

Retained premiums and commission income, which relate to unexpired risks beyond the end of the financial period,
are reported as unearned and deferred based on the following methods:

" Actual number of days for all lines of business, except

. For engineering construction projects with policy terms in excess of one year, it is assumed that the risk is
increasing linearly over the policy term.

" Last three month of premiums for marine cargo business

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable are recognized when due and are measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
considerations received or receivable. The carrving value of premiums receivable is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment
loss recorded in the statement of insurance operations and accumulated surplus. Premiums receivable are
derecognized when the de-recognition criteria for financial assets have been met.

Claims

Claims consist of amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of
salvage and other recoveries, and are charged to statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus / (deficit) as incurred.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the date of
statement of financial position, whether reported or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as at the date of
statement of financial position are made on the basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based on
management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred
but not reported at date of statement of financial position. The ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the
amount provided.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Claims (continued)

Any difference between the provisions at the date of statement of financial position and settlements and provisions
in the following year is included in the underwriting account for that year, The Company does not discount its
liabilities for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement of
financial position date.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are
adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts, If that assessment shows that
the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related deferred policy acquisition costs) is inadequate in the
light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognised in the statement of income -
insurance operations and accumulated surplus and an unexpired risk provision is created.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions, SAMA fees, CCHI fees, TPA fees, partial administration cost (related to underwriting and issue of
policy), and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are deferred and
amortized over the terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate, similar to premiums earned. All other
acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Amortization is recorded in the statement of income -
insurance operations and accumulated surplus.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises, If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realised, the amortization of these
costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment write-offs in the statement of insurance
operations and accumulated surplus. Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the liability adequacy
test for each reporting period.

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assets represent balances due
from reinsurance companies, Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Company may not
recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company
will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of
income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus,

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same manner as they

would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the
reinsured business.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a
manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Me_diterr'_a'n'ean and Guif Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Unearned reinsurance commission

Commission receivable on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the terms of the
insurance contracts to which they relate. Amortisation is recorded in the statement of income - insurance operations
and accumulated surpius.

Product classification

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where
the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a
specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines
significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights
that comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows
attributable to the instrument are passed through to an independent third party.

Fuair values

The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The
fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using commission for items with
similar terms and risk characteristics.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a
similar financial assets or where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that includes the use of mathematical models. The inputs of this models is taken
from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values,

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that is engaged in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses and about which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance, For
management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

. Medical insurance, which covers medical costs, medicines, and all other medical services and supplies.
. Motor Insurance, which provides coverage against losses and liability related to motor vehicles,
. Other classes, which covers any other classes of insurance not included above,

Sharcholders’ operations’ is a non-operating segment. Income earned from time deposits and investments is the
only revenue generating activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to
this segment on an appropriate basis. The loss or surplus from the insurance operations is allocated to this segment
on an appropriate basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from
income or loss in the accompanying financial statements,

No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year, If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices between
operating segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment
income, expense and results will then include those transfers between operating segments which will then be
eliminated at the level of financial statements of the Company.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Medite'rr_'anéan and Gi_iIf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result in an outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of statement
of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of the
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.,

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that needed to be considered in estimating the
liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. The provision for claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to the date of statement of financial
position, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the date of statement of financial position. The primary
technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past
claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not
reported, on quarterly basis.

The Company is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Company monitors on a
quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its reinsurers

Impairment losses on receivables

The Company assesses receivables that are individually significant and receivables included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Company evaluates credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status being indicative of the ability to pay all
amounts due as per contractual terms,

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Certain acquisition costs related to the sale of new policies are recorded as deferred policy acquisition costs and are
amortized in the statement of insurance income - operations and accumulated surplus / deficit over the related
period of policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realized, the
amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment write-offs in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus,

Goodwill

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
discounted cash flow model. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted
cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranéan and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and related disclosure at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the reporting year. Although these estimates and judgments are based on management’s
best knowledge of the current events and actions but the actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities for the
current year and could also have an impact on the subsequent financial year. Such estimates and judgments are
constantly assessed based on historical experience and other factors such as expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the current circumstances,

Estimation of insurance contracts reserves;

Following are the critical areas of estimation and judgments for medical and motor business for which the Company
acquires services of independent actuary to determine such reserves.

(i) Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR)

As a first step towards setting appropriate IBNR reserves for the medical and motor line of businesses, a runoff
analysis is prepared to assess how the claims reserves determined at the previous valuation dates compare with
actual developments.

Results from runoff analysis are taken into consideration while setting reserves for IBNR claims. An analysis is
carried out by using the following methods:

¢ Chain Ladder method - this builds up, using historical claims payment patterns, ratios of eventusal cumulative
claims which have been incurred in a particular period to those which have been paid as at the end of a
reporting period.

* Bornhuetter Ferguson method — this is a technigue that combines actual past claimg experience and any prior
information or expectations that might be available concerning claims, for example expected ultimate loss
ratios.

e Expected Loss Ratio method — this technique determines the projected amount of claims relative to earned
premiums. The method is used where the insurer lacks the appropriate past claim occurrence data because of
changes in product offerings, change in claims settlement processes, efc.

(ii) Premium deficiency reserve

Estimation of the premium deficiency for medical and motor business is highly sensitive to a number of
assumptions as to the future events and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of
the risks for written policies. To arrive at the estimate of the expected loss ratio, the actuary looks at the claims and
premiums relationship which is expected to realize in the future.

The accompanying notes | to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Medlterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

7. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
2016 2015
SR'000 SR000 SR'000 SR’000

Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’

operations operations operations operations
Cash in hand and at banks 31,535 24,739 231,194 2,122
Short-term time deposits 429,076 186,938 343,050 106,790
Cash and cash equivalents in
the statement of cash flows 460,611 211,677 574,244 108,912
Deposits against Jetters of

guarantee 26,511 - 21,074 -
487,122 211,677 595,318 108,912

Cash at banks and short-term time deposits are placed with counterparties who have credit ratings equivalent to A+
to BBB ratings under Standard and Poor's, Fitch and Moody’s ratings methodology.

Short-term time deposits are placed with local and licensed foreign banks’ branches in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
with an original maturity of less than three months from the date of acquisition and earned special commission
income at an average rate of 3.25% per annum (2015: 1.95% per annum). The carrying amounts disclosed above
reasonably approximate the fair value at the statement of financial position date.

Deposits against letters of guarantee comprise amounts placed with a local bank against issuance of payment
guarantees in favour of the Company’s customers and service providers (also see note 30). As deposits against
letters of guarantee cannot be withdrawn before the end of guarantee and are restricted in nature.

8. TIME DEPOSITS

Time deposits are placed with counterparties that have credit ratings equivalent to BBB+ to BBB ratings under
Standard and Poort's, Fitch and Moody’s ratings methodology.

Time deposits are placed with local and licensed foreign banks’ branches in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with a
maturity of more than three months from the date of original acquisition and earned special commission income at
an average rate of 3.15% per annum (2015: 1.38% per annum).

The carrying amounts of the time deposits reasonably approximate the fair value at the statement of financial
position date.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

9, POLICYHOLDERS® AND REINSURANCE BALANCES RECEIVABLE

2016 2015

SR'000 SR'000

Policyholders® balances receivable 1,099,022 1,291,600
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (182,862) (147,862)

916,160 1,143,738
Reinsurance balances receivable 335,954 548,048
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (3,639) (3,639)

332,315 544,409
TFotal policyholders’ and reinsurance balances receivable 1,248,475 1,688,147

As at December 31, 2016, the movement in the provision for doubtful debts of premium receivables was as follows:

2016 2015
Note SR'000 SR’000
Balance, January | 147,862 136,570
Provision for the year 23 35,000 11,292
Balance, December 31 182,862 147,862

As at December 31, 2016, the movement in the provision for doubtful debts of reinsurance receivables was as
follows:

2016 2013
Note SR'O00 SR'000
Balance, January 1 3,639 4,931
Reversal for the year 23 - (1,292)
Balance, December 31 3,639 3,639

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

23



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

9. PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE BALANCES RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The aging analysis of gross premiums and reinsurance balances receivable is as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 is
set as below:

Past due but not impaired

Neither
past due Past due
Hnor Less than 31to Movre than and
Total impaired 30 day 90 days 90 days impaired
SR’000 SR’000 SR000 SR'000 SR000 SR'000
2016 1,434,976 399,128 209,804 343,378 296,075 186,501
2015 1,839,648 505,873 179,183 375,483 627,608 151,501

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia as well as reinsurance companies mainly in Europe. Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable
include SR 37,156 thousand (31 December 2015; SR 148,994 thousand) due in foreign currencies, mainly in US
Dollars. The Company’s terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of
transaction. Arrangements with reinsurers normally require settlement if the balance exceeds a certain agreed
amount. The five largest customers accounts for 43% (31 December 2015: 42%) of the premiums receivable as at
31 December 2016. Fusther, total receivable from government entities amount to SR 332,602 thousand (31
December 2015: SR 286,534 thousand) constituting 30% (31 December 2015: 23%) of total premium receivable.

Unimpaired premiums and reinsurance balances receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be
fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the Company to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority
are, therefore, unsecured. The Company does not have an internal credit ratings assessment process and
accordingly, amounts which are neither past due nor impaired, in respect of premiums receivable balances, are from
individuals and unrated corporates. Balances due from reinsurers are with counterparties who have investment
grade credit ratings issued by external rating agencies,

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterraﬁéan'aﬁd Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

(a) The following are the details of major related party transactions during the year and their balances at the end of
the year:

Nature of Amount of transaction for the

Related parties transaction year ended Balunce
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
SR'000 SR'000 SR’060 SR'000

Due from related parties
Medgulf BSC - -Claims recoveries
Head office on behalf of parent
account (parent company 2,065 - - -
company) -Payment received

during the year 23,879 - - -

-Balance due from
at year end - - 2,065 23,879

-Reinsurance

recoveries on

behalf of parent

company B 4 . i

Medgulf BSC -
Operation account
{parent company)

-Settlement on

behalf of parent

company {run off) - 93 - -

-Payment received

during the year 24,206 - - -

-Balance due from

at year end - N - 24206
Medgulf Egypt  _payment received
(fellow during the year 58 - - -
subsidiary)

-Balance due from

at year end ) ) ) 58
Medgulf Jordan -Payment received
(fellow during the year 25 - - -
subsidiary)

-Balance due from

at year end - . - 25
Motion al-Saudia p ived
(etlow -Payment receive
subsidiary) (in during the year 10,924 - - -
liquidation) -Balance due from

at year end - - - 10,924

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cdoperative Inéuraince and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Nature of
transaction

Amount of transaction for the
year ended
31 December 3! December

Balance
31 December 31 December

Reluated parties

Due from related parties (continued)

Addison Bradley
Arabia- KSA -
(fellow subsidiary)

Al Samiya
Trading Co (fellow
subsidiary)

Medgulf Lebanon
(fellow subsidiary)

-Payment received
during the year

-Bajance due from
at year end

~Payment received
during the year
-Gross written
premium

-Balance due from
at year end
-Claims paid by
fellow subsidiary
on behalf of
Medgulf KSA

Due to related parties

Medivisa KSA
tfellow subsidiary)

-Insurance
premium for
employees of
fellow subsidiary

-Third party
administration
fees

-Payment medical
claim

-Claim incurred

~Payment received

-Premium
refundable
-Payment on third
party
administration
fees

«5% Service fees
paid on behalf on
Medgulf KSA
(Jordan)

~Amount set off in
favour of Medgulf
BSC

-Balance due to at
year end

2016

2013

2016

2013

SR'000

SR'000

SR’000

SR'000

13,066

448

3,894

77,061

66
43

367

68,000

40,589

20

1,075

13,066

448

2,065

72,606

3,392

98,500

1,746
164
g0

264

84,737

84

5,643

40,589

5,643

40,589

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.




The Mediterranean and Gulf Codperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Nature of Amount of transaction for the
Related parties transaction year ended Balance
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2013 2016 2013
SR'000 SR060 SR'000 SR'000
The Saudi -Current account
Investment Bank,  and time deposits 20,297 9,350 20,820 523
(Founding -Statutory deposit
shareholders) (refer note 1.a
(i) 53,315 375 161,072 107,757
-Gross written
premiums 2,965 4,363 - -
-Premiums
refundable - - (1,013) (664)
-Claims incurred 928 1,599 - -
-Qutstanding
claims - - (397) {361)
Allstithmar -Discretionary
Capital (subsidiary portfolio
of SIB-founding arrangement
shareholders) (refer 10.a ii) 463 28 55,626 55,163
-GCC Equity
Fund - 1,133 - 9,272
~Gross Written
Premium /
(refund) 24) 228 - -
-Premiums
refundable - - (38) (14)
Saudi Ground -Gross Written
Services (Under Premium 76,102 - - -
common -Premiums
directorship) receivable - - 19,408 -
Note 10.afiv) -Claims incurred 21,057 . . ,
-Qutstanding
claims - - (1) -
Banque de Credit
Nationat (Common -Current account ) 19 ) )
ownership and and time deposits
directors)
Creative Solutions  -Gross written } 506 ) )
Restaurants Co. premiums
(Under common -Claims incurred - 189 - -
directorship) note Premiums
10.a(if}) receivable - - - 2
Sanaya Dental -Medical elaim 137 107 - .
Care (Under p
common -Payment on
directorship) account 135 114 - -
-Balance due to at
year end - - (8) (9
Prime Health Pavment to
Insurance (fellow ¢ Cia
subsidiary) 4 - 177 - -

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Me'di'tei'ranean. and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Nature of Amount of transaction for the
Related parties fransaction year ended Balance
371 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
SR'000 SR’000 SR000 SR'000
Medivisa KSA -Medical claim
(fellow subsidiary) Jordan/ balance 1,168 2,246 1,327 159
-Medical claim
Lebanon / balance 365 4,351 365 -
-Medical claim
Egypt / balance 58 328 77 19
-Payment to
Medivisa KSA - 278 - -
Saudi Orix ~Investment in 3 7500 ) )
(Shareholders of  Sukuk/ repayment !
the parent -Income on Sukuk - 185 . -
company) .
-Gross written
premiums 27,788 30,644 - -
-Premiums
receivable - - 1,313 1,925
~Claims incurred 19,659 22,717 - -
-Outstanding
claims - - (56) (220)
Safari Group of -Gross written
companies premiums 16,680 13,974 - -
{common -Premiums
Directorship) receivable - - 188 1,126
-Claims incurred 15,030 12,842 - -
~Claims payable - - (20) (785)
Khalid A. Al -Gross written
Shathry premiums 25 49 - -
Construction Co.  .Premiums
(Under common receivable . . 143 119
directorship) L
-Claims incurred 56 48 - -
- Qutstanding ) } 1
claims N
Khalid A. Al -Gross written
Shathry- board premiums 7 51 - -
member -Premiums
(individual motor  receivables - - 522 B31
policies) -Claims incurred 14 43 - -
~QOutstanding
claims /
(recovery) - - 10 (i)
Al Jasamah -Gross written
establishment premiums - 152 - -
(Under common -Premiums
directorship) note  receivables - - - 4
10.aftii) -Claims incurred - 409 - -
-QOutstanding
claims - - - 8)

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,




The Mediterréhean and Gulf Cooperaﬁvé Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amount of transaction for the
year ended
31 December 3! December

Nature of
transaction Balance

31 December 31 December

Related parties

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Medgulf BSC
(parent company)

Addisen Bradley
Overseas (fellow
subsidiary)

Addison Bradley
Arabia Holding
LLC (UAE)
(fellow subsidiary)

SIB LLC (UAE)
(fellow subsidiary)

Addison Bradley
Arabia-KSA
(fellow subsidiary)

-Claim recoveries

-Reinsurance
premium ceded
-Payment
received during
the year
-Reinsurance
Commission
income
-Amount set off
from Medivisa
KSA balance
-Balance
Receivable at the
end of the year
-Reinsurance
premiums ceded
-Reinsurance
claim recoveries
-Payment
received
-Balance at the
end of year
~-Reinsurance
claim recoveries
payable
-Commission
cancellation

~Payment made
during the year
-Payment
received during
the year
~Balance due to at
year end
-Reinsurance
receivable
-Premiums
receivable
-Payment
received during
the year

2016

2015

2016

2015

SR’000

SR’000

SR*000

SR’000

26,949

126,586

40,589

2,692

31

4,570

268,728

3,610

361

61
15,227

14,000

10

-

165,666

305,892

54,527

(2,692)

(31)
3,164

1,406
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The Méditerranean and Gﬁif Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Nature of Amount of transaction for the
Related parties transaction year ended Balance
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
SR’000 SR’000 SR000 SR'000
Addison Bradley  -Reinsurance
Arabia- KSA ~ premiums ceded - 6 - -
reinsurance broker -Reinsurance
(fellow subsidiary)  claim recoveries - 3,888 - -
-Direct payment
to reinsurer - 1,920 - -
-Collection from
recoveries - 6,149 - -
Addison Bradley
Arabia- KSA -
Brokerage -Brokerage . 20 . -
L commission
commission
{fellow subsidiary)
Emad J, Baban -(ross written
{individual motor  premiums - 19 - -
policies of
Director) note -Claims incurred - 33 - -
10.afiii)
Saleh Al-Sagri -Gross written
(individual motor  premiums 64 148 - -
policies of -Premiums
Director} refundable - - - (8)
~Claims incurred 2 25 - -
Lutfi Fadel El Zein G .
- board member T TOSS Written
premiums 87 ) ) )

10.a(3) Statutory deposit has been placed with the Saudi Investment Bank at the commission rate of 0.7% per
annum (31 December 2015: 0.7% per annum).

10.a{ii) Discretionary portfolio management agreement (DPM) was sighed on February 11, 2011 and includes a mix
of equity and debt investments,

10.aiii) Creative solution restaurants Co., Al Jasamah establishment and Emad J. Baban are not a related party for
the current year. The transactions and balances are presented for comparison only.

10.a(iv) During the year a transaction has entered with Saudi Ground Service {under common directorship) for
which the approval has been taken in extraordinary general assembly meeting held on October 16, 2016,

Compensation of key management personnel
10.b The remuneration of the Board of Directors and other key management personnel during the year is as

Jollows:

Short term benefits

End of service benefits

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2016 2013
SR'000 SR'000
16,577 23,993
1,089 2,446
17,666 26,349
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

il CLAIMS

a) Outstanding Claims, IBNR and Other Reserves
2016 2015
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
SR000 SR'000 SR’000 SR'000 SR’000 SR’000
Outstanding at end of the
year 608,009 (441,296) 166,713 859,765 (519,205) 340,560
Incurred but not reported 715,947 (154,645) 561,302 805,023 (152,109) 652,914

1,323,956 (595,941) 728,015 1,664,788 (671,314} 993,474
Other reserves (note 11b) 45,154 - 45,154 34,350 - 34,350

1,369,110 {595,941) 773,169 1,699,138 (671,314) 1,027,824

Claims paid during the year 3,104,021  (384,371) 2,719,650 3,557,372  (688,741)  2,868,63

Outstanding at beginning of

the year 859,765 (519,208) 340,560 790,269 (515,993) 274,276
Incurred but not reported 805,023 (152,109) 652,914 482,032 (135,687) 346,345
Other reserves (note 11b) 34,350 - 34,350 7,132 - 7,132

1,699,138 (671,314) 1,027,824 1,279,433 (651,680) 627,753
Claims incurred 2,773,993 (308,998) 2,464,995 3,977,077 (708,375) 3,268,702

b) Other Reserves

2016 2015
SR’000 SR'000
Premium Deficiency Reserve (PDR) 17,527 24,265
Others 27,627 10,085
Other reserves at end of the year 45,154 34,350

) Claims Triangulation Analysis by Accident Year

The Company maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse
future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes more
certain, adverse claims experiences will be eliminated which results in the release of reserves from earlier accident
vears. In order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company transfers much of this release to the current accident
year reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is much greater uncertainty attached to the
ultimate cost of claims.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
11, CLAIMS (Continiued)

c} Clsims Trianguiation Analysis by Accident Year (Continued)

Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.

i} On Gross Basis

Accident
Year

At the end of
accident year

One year later
Two years
later

Three years
later

Four years
later

Five years
later

Six years
later

Seven years
later
Ultimate paid
claims
(estimated)
Cumulative
paid claims
Outstanding
claims +
IBNR

2009
SR'000

1,148,965
1,166,831
1,165,977
1,145,562
1,281,007
1,257,000
1,238,429

1,238,219

1,238,219

1,233,233

4,986

2010
SR'000

1,525,392
1,538,465
1,509,521
1,537,038
1,537,201
1,543,934
1,544,369

1,544,369

1,525,655

18,714

2011
SR'006

1,759,169
1,887,696
1,967,219
1,950,795
1,948,513

1,945,686

1,945,686

1,935,256

10,430

2012
SR'000

2,030,375
2,355,342
2,319,794
2,321,681

2,323,884

2,323,884

2,297,400

26,484

2013 2014
SR'000  SR'000
2,865,129 3,196,139
3,006,147 3,446,409
3,056,802 3,430,507

3,082,282

3,082,282 3,430,507

2,918,837 3,343,372
163,445 87,135

2015
SR000

3,553,993

3,403,193

3,403,193

3,230,990

172,203

*Other reserves amounting to SR 45,154 thousand are not included in the claims triangulation.
ii) On net Basis (net of reinsurance)

Accident
Year

At the end of
accident year
One year
later

Two years
later

Three years
later

Four years
later

Five years
later

Six years
later

Seven years
later
Ultimate paid
claims
festimated)
Cumulative
paid claims
Outstanding
claims +
IBNR

2009
SR008

607,986
962,313
976,888
979,244
980,249
980,674
980,908

980,888

980,888

980,167

721

2010
SR'006

872,155
1,230,576
1,253,029
1,256,681
1,258,037
1,265,891

1,265,159

1,265,159

1,265,527

(368)

2011
SR’000

1,032,598
1,472,573
1,500,727
1,505,277
1,505,267

1,508,041

1,508,041

1,307,236

805

2012
SR’000

1,118,998
1,767,465
1,790,733
1,797,190

1,796,803

1,796,803

1,795,712

1,091

2013 2014
SR’000 SR'00¢
1,437,617 2,459,548
2,289816 2,657,710
2,337,043 2,637,623

2,343,241

2,343,241 2,637,623

2,337,348 2,620,345
5,893 17,278

2015
SR'000

2,884,490

2,749,239

2,749,239

2,682,080

67,159

*Other reserves amounting to SR 45,154 thousand are not included in the claims triangulation.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2016
SR’000

2,821,668

2,821,668

1,981,109

840,559

2016
SR000

2,518,555

2,518,355

1,883,119

635,436

TOTAL
SR'000

19,789,808

18,465,852

1,323,956

TOTAL
SR’000

15,799,549

15,071,334

728,015
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The Mediferr_énéan and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

12, INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Investment in an associate comptises of an equity investment in Al-Waseel for Electronic Transportation amounting
to SR 14,802 thousand (a 25% equity interest) (31 December 2015: SR 12,095 thousand), in an unquoted company
(the “associate™), registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

13. INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified as set out below:

(1) Insurance Operations - Available for sale investments
2016
Quoted Unquoted Total
SR000 SR’000 SR000
Mutual funds 3,308 - 3,308
Sukuk - 25,000 25,000
3,308 25,000 28,308
2015
Quoted Unguoted Total
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Mutual funds 33,070 . 33,070
Sukuk . 25,000 25,000
Equities 2,154 - 2,154
35,224 25,000 60,224

The available for sale investments comprise mutual funds, sukuk and equities issued by corporate and financial
institutions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments for insurance operations amounting to
SR 277 thousand (31 December 2015: SR 1,825 thousand) is presented within insurance operations’ surplus’ in the
statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterfanean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Compémy
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)
{a} Insurance Operations - Available for sale investments (Continued)

The movements during the year in available for sale investments for insurance’s operations were as follows:

2016 2015
SR000 SR*000

At the beginning of the year 60,224 97,733
Purchase during the year - -
Sold during the year (31,326) (37,500)

28,898 60,233
Realised gain*® 1,683 10
Empairment loss (725) -
Net change in fair values (1,548) (19
At the end of the year 28,308 60,224

*The realised gain is transferred to statement of income under special commission income.

b Shareholders® Operations - Available for sale investments
2016
Quoted Unguoted Total
SR’G60 SR'000 SR’G00
Mutual funds 55,626 - 55,626
Bonds 28,753 18,774 47,527
Sukuk - 41,000 41,000
Equities - 1,923 1,923
Total 84,379 61,697 146,076
2015
Quoted Unguoted Total
SR 060 SR'060 SR'060
Mutual funds 74,843 - 74,843
Bonds 77,319 18,820 96,139
Sukuk 10,064 40,996 51,060
Equities 19,972 - 19,972
Total 182,198 59,816 242,014

The available for sale investments comprise of mutual funds, bonds, sukuk and equities issued by corporate and
financial institutions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments for shareholders’ operations amounting to
SR 5,486 thousand (31 December 2015: SR 15,261 thousand) is presented within sharcholders’ equity in the
statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(b} Shareholders® Operations - Available for sale investments (Continued)

The movements during the year in available for sale investments for shareholders’ operations were as follows:

2016 2015
SR*000 SR'000

At the beginning of the year 242,014 270,415
Purchased during the year - -
Sold during the year {99,282) (18,298)

142,732 252,117
Realised gain 13,735 774
Impairment loss (616) {16,193)
Net change in fair values (9,775) 5,316
At the end of the year 146,076 242,014
{c) Insurance and Shareholders’ Operations - Available for sale investments

i. The analysis of investments of insurance and shareholders’ operations by counterparties is as follows:

2016 2015
SR’000 SR'000
Government and quasi government 20,000 68,464
Banks and other financial institutions 152,461 208,478
Corporates 1,923 25,296
Total 174,384 302,238
ii. The credit quality of investment portfolio is as follows:
2016 2015
SR*000 SR'000
AA-To AAA 38,755 87,321
A-To A+ 114,932 166,129
B- To B+ - 992
NA 20,697 47,796
Total 174,384 302,238

Credit ratings are based on Standard and Poor, Fitch and Moody’s rating methodology or the issuer, noting that
“NA” represents the sum of the investments which are not rated.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Guif Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(C) Insurance and Shareholders’ Operations - Available for sale investments (Continued)

iii.  Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or the most advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigque. The fair values of recognised financial instruments are not significantly different from the carrying values
included in the financial statements. The estimated fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market
prices, when available. There are no transfers made during the year between the levels in the fair value hierarchy. The

fair values of these investments are disclosed below.

Determination af fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

¢ Level 1: quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted unadjusted prices for identical instruments

in active markets.

o Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and Habilities or other valuation techniques for
which all significant inputs are based on observable market data. Level 2 consists of bonds and sukuks, the

value of these are based on discounted cash flow technique.

e Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The valuation of each publicly traded investment is based upon the closing market price of that stock as of the

valuation date, less a discount if the security is restricted,

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy:

1. Insurance operations - Fair Value

2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR'000 SR’000 SR'000 SR’000
Available for sale investments
Mutual funds 3,308 - - 3,308
Sukuk - 25,000 - 25,000
Total available for sale investments 3,308 25,000 - 28,308
2015
Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR000
Available for sale investments
Mutual funds 33,070 - - 33,070
Sukuk - 25,000 - 25,000
Equities 2,154 - - 2,154
Total available for sale investments 35,224 25,000 - 60,224

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Fot the Year Ended 31 December 2016

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)
{C} Insurance and Shareholders’ Operations - Available for sale investments (Continued)
iii.  Fair value (Continued)

2, Sharcholders' operations —Fair value

2016
Level 1 ) Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR'006 SR000 SR’000 SR'000
Available for sale investments
Mutual funds 55,626 - - 55,626
Bonds 9,998 37,529 - 47,527
Sukuk - 41,000 - 41,000
Equities - - 1,923 1,923
Total available for sale invesiments 65,624 78,529 1,923 146,076
2015
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR’000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Available for sale investments
Mutual funds 74,843 - - 74,843
Bonds 9,998 86,141 - 96,139
Sukuk 10,064 40,996 - 51,060
Equities 18,049 - 1,923 19,972
Total available for sale investments 112,954 127,137 1,923 242,014
14, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS
2016 2013
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
Operations Operations Operations Operations
SR'600 SR'000 SR000 SR'000
Advances to employees 7,738 - 8,760 -
Prepaid expenses 1,103 - 2,103 -
Prepayment on hospital dues 139,520 - 31,169 -
Advances to suppliers 4,363 - 4,520 -
Prepaid rent 3,984 - 3,783 -
Accrued special commission income 5,174 2,455 1,286 1,782
Others 1,896 143 3,230 -
163,778 2,598 54,851 1,782

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperatlve Insurance and Remsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

15. MOVEMENT IN UNEARNED PREMIUMS
2016 2015
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Grosy share Net
SR000 SR'000 SR’'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000

At the beginning of the

year 2,054,448 (713,158) 1,341,29¢ 2,483,739 (1,033,651 1,450,088
Premiums written

during the year 3,194,334 (497,130) 2,697,204 4,001,934 (643,419) 3,358,515
Premiums earped

during the year (3,619,531) 673,905  (2,945,626) (4,431,225) 963,912 (3,467,313)
At the end of the year 1,629,251 (536,383) 1,092,868 2,054,448 (713,158) 1,341,290
16. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS
(a) The movements during the year for commissions’ incurred for operations are as follows:

2016 2015
SR’000 SR’000

At the beginning of the year 100,599 101,653
Costs incurred during the year 160,012 226,263
Amortised during the year (187,685) (227,317)
At the end of the year 72,926 100,599

{b) The movements during the year for deferral of SAMA fees, CCHI fees, TPA fees and certain administration

cost are as follows:

2016 2015
SR’000 SR’000
At the beginning of the year 81,208 98,833
Costs incurred during the year 114,606 147,064
Amortised during the year (127,404) (164,689)
At the end of the year 68,410 81,208
Total deferred acquisition cost at end of the year 141,336 181,807

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Office
equipmeit,
Leasehold  furniture and
improvements fixtures Computers  Motor vehicles Total
SR'000 SR’'000 SR'000 SR000 SR'000

Cost:

1 January 2015 31,733 23,896 40,993 4,014 100,636

Additions 3,103 6,517 2,879 380 12,879

Disposals (25) (1,253) (201) (341} {(1,820)

31 December 2015 34,811 29,160 43,671 4,053 111,695

Additions 266 1,575 3,092 502 5,435

Disposals - (1) - (351) (352)

31 December 2016 35,077 30,734 46,763 4,204 116,778
Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2015 22,340 10,892 12,770 3,070 49,072

Provided during the year 2,426 3,591 2,458 598 9,073

Disposals (1% (1,114) (195) (341) (1,669)

31 December 2015 24,747 13,369 15,033 3,327 56,476

Provided during the year 2,610 3,967 2,466 428 9.471

Disposals - (1) - (323) (324)

31 December 2016 27,357 17,335 17,499 3,432 65,623
Net book value:

31 December 2016 7,720 13,399 29,264 772 51,155

31 December 2015 10,064 15,791 28,638 726 55,219
18. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit represents 10% of the paid up capital which is maintained in accordance with the Law on
Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Further, SAMA has increased
the statutory deposit by 5% and accordingly the Company has transferred the same to arrive at 15% statutory
deposit (also see note 32). This statutory deposit cannot be withdrawn without the consent of the Saudi Arabian
Monetary Agency (“SAMA™).

19, GOODWILL

The Company commenced its insurance operations on 1 January 2009. In 2009, the Company entered into an
agreement (“the agreement”) for the purchase of insurance portfolio and the related net assets and liabilities of the
Saudi Arabian Operations of the Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Company (MEDGULF)
B.S.C. (closed). The Company held an ordinary general assembly meeting on 22 December 2008 and approved the
purchase of the insurance portfolio and the related net assets and liabilities of the Saudi Arabian Operations of the
Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Company (MEDGULF) B.5.C. (closed) effective 1 January
2009. This acquisition resulted in goodwill of SR 480,000 thousand.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. Recoverable amount was determined on the basis of fair value less cost
1o sell.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterra_nean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

19, GOODWILL (Continued)

The Fair Value less cost to seil (“FVLCTS™) is used to conclude on the impairment assessment. The valuation result
has determined that the recoverable amount of goodwill is higher than its carrying amount,

Fair Value analysis is based on the “Market Approach” where trading activity of Medgulf’s stock and the
capitalisation of earnings using value metrics of broadly comparable listed companies and Mergers and
Acquisitions transaction multiples were considered up to the valuation date,

As per management’s assessment, the Company’s track record supports the assumptions used in the impairment
testing.

The life span of goodwill is not definite as it is an unidentifiable intangible asset and cannot exist independently of
the business, nor can it be sold, purchased or transferred separately without carrying out the transaction for the

business as a whole.

20. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2013
Insurance Shareholders Insurance Shareholders
Operations Operations Operations Operations
Note SR'000 SR’000 SR'000 SR’000
Employees' end of service benefits 21 26,047 - 23,729 -
Accrued CCHI fees 4,237 - 28,115 -
Payable to suppliers 136,318 - 86,516 -
Accrued expenses 17,531 635 17,916 762
Other payables 221 - 317 -
184,354 633 156,593 762
21, EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS
2016 2015
Note SR’'000 SR'G00
At the beginning of the year 23,729 36,945
Charged during the year 23 12,338 1,116
Paid during the year {16,0620) (14,332)
At the end of the year 20 26,047 23,729
22, UNEARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION
2016 2015
SR'000 SR'000
At the beginning of the year 56,315 73,458
Commission received during the year 65,271 93,737
Commission earned during the year (85,002) (110,880)
At the end of the year 36,584 56,315

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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23, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2016 2015
Disurance Shareholders’ Insurarice Shareholders’
Operations Operations Operations Operations
Note SR'000 SR’000 SR'000 SR'000
Employee salaries and costs 157,786 - 183,300 -
Supervision and inspection fees - CCHI 22,885 - 30,597 -
Rental 22,801 - 29,029 -
Supervision and inspection fees - SAMA 18,092 - 22,155 -
Professional fees 15,618 494 20,646 507
Depreciation 9,471 - 9,073 -
Employees’ end of service benefits 21 12,338 - 1,116 -
Stationery 4,363 - 7,183 -
Withholding taxes on reinsurance payments 63,714 - 49,907 -
Repairs and maintenance 7,786 - 6,814 -
Promotion and advertising 3,166 286 4,362 135
Business travel and transport 2,293 40 2,220 332
Utilities 1,343 - 1,212 -
Board of Directors and other commitiees
remunerations and expenses - 3,132 - 3,160
SAMA interest fees - - - 6,539
Bad debts 9 35,000 - 10,000 -
Others 20,119 212 19,855 276
396,805 4,164 397,469 10,829
24. OTHER INCOME
016 2015
SR000 SR'000
Income from hospitals for prompt settlement of claims 41,362 44,088
Others 7,135 16,085
48,497 60,173

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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25, PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

a)  Zakat charge for the year

2016 2015
Note SR'000 SR000

Zakat Czlculation:

Net Income / (loss) for the year 67,611 (261,267
Provision for end of service benefits 21 26,047 23,729
Provision for doubtful debts 9 186,501 151,501
Withholding taxes payable on reinsurance payment 94,333 48,978
Share capital 5 1,000,000 1,600,000
Surplus distribution payable 111,566 106,591
Statutory reserve 26 146,135 146,135
Opening accumulated profit 19,990

1,564,582 1,496,924

Fixed assets differences (542,097) (535,624)
Investment in associate 12 (14,802) (12,095)
Investment in Najm (level 3) 13(c) (1,923) (1,923)
Difference in depreciation on fixed assets (23,191) {24,290)
Deferred acquisition cost 16 (141,336) (181,807
Opening accumulated loss (249,265

(972,614) {755,739)
Zakat base 659,579 479,918
Saudi shareholders® share of zakat base (47.97%) (31 December
2015: 54.5%) 316,400 261,555
Zakat at 2.5% 7,910 6,539

Income tax calculation:

Net Income / (loss) for the year 67,611 -
Provision charged during the vear for end of service benefits 21 12,338 -
Provision charged during the year for doubtful debts 9 35,000 -
Withholding tax expense during the year 23 63,714 -
Difference in depreciation on fixed assets {23,191} -
87,861 -
155,472 -
Foreign shareholders’ share of tax base (52.03%) 80,892 -
Payments of end of service benefits 21 (10,0620) -
Payments of withholding tax (14,934) .
(24,954) .
Foreign shareholders’ share of tax base (52.03%) (31 December 2015:
45.5% (12,984) -
25% deduction from foreign share of tax base to cover accumulated -
losses (20,223)
Tax base 47,685 -
Tax at 20% 9,537 -
Total zakat and tax charge for the year 25 (c) 17.447 6,539

The differences between the financia! and the zakattable results are mainly due to provisions which are not included
in the calculation of zakattable income.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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25, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

h) Income tax charge for the year

Income tax relating to the non Saudi shareholders in 2016 amounting to SR 9,537 thousand consists of the 2016 year
charge, which has been provided for based on the estimated taxable profit at 52.03%. There was no income tax in
2015 due to the losses incurred.

) Movement in the provision for zakat and income tax during the year

The movement in the provision for zakat and income tax for the year was as follows:

2016 2015

Note SR*000 SR'000
At the beginning of the year 844 19,507
Charge - current year 25(a) 17,447 6,539
prior year - 1,449
17,447 7,988

Payments during the year (2,893) {26,651)
At the end of the year 15,398 844

The provision for zakat and income tax for the year is 15,398 thousand (31 December 2015: SR 844 thousand).
An amount of SR 17,447 thousand (also see note 25(a)) has been charged in the statement of shareholders’
comprehensive income / (loss) to meet the required provision for the year ended December 31, 2016.

d) Status of zakat and tax assessments

The Company has filed its zakat and income tax declarations for the year from 16 April 2007 to 31 December 2015
with the General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax (GAZT). The GAZT has given its preliminary assessment for
the years from 16 April 2007 to 31 December 2012 and identified differences amounting to SR 76 million,
however, the Company has filed an appeal against this assessment and based on tax advisor's assessment,
management believes that appropriate provision is made in the books. No assessment of the remaining years have
been completed yet by the GAZT.

26. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized and paid up share capital of the Company is SR 1,000 thousand divided into 100 thousand shares
of SR 10 each (31 December 2815: SR 1,000 thousand divided into 100 million shares of SR 10 each) . The
founding shareholders of the Company have subscribed and paid for 75 million shares (SR 750 million) with a
nominal value of SR 10 each, which represent 75% of the shares of the Company and the remaining 25 million
shares (SR 250 million} with a nominal value of SR 10 each which represent 25% of the shares of the Company,
have been subseribed by the general public.

27, BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSSES) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings / (losses) per share for the year was calculated by dividing the net income for the year
by the weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding during the year amounting to 100 million shares,

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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28, INTEREST ON STATUTORY DEPOSIT

The interest on statutory deposit which is maintained in accordance with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative
Insurance Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia amounts to SR 11,072 thousand (31 December 2015: 7,757
thousand). This interest cannot be withdrawn without the consent of Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”™).

29, FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities include cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, investments, receivables, payables,
and certain other assets and liabilities. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are not materially
different from their carrying values with the exception of unguoted financial instruments which are carried at cost,

340. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a} Legal proceedings
The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of
business. While it is not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened
legal proceedings, management does not believe that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a
material effect on its results and financial position.

b) Operating lease commitments
The minimum future lease payments for the use of the Company office premises are as follows;

2016 2015
SR’000 SR’000
Less than one year - -
One to five years 22,831 29,029
22,831 29,029

¢ Contingencies and capital commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s banker has issued letters of guarantee of SR 26,511 thousand (31
December 2015: SR 21,074 thousand) to various customers, motor agencies and workshops as per the
terms of the agreements with them (also see note 7). The Company had no capital commitments in 2016
{31 December 2015: nil).

31, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process, operating segments have been approved by management
in respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities as set out below,

Segment results do not include allocation of general and administration expenses, special commission income and
other income to operating segments.

Segment assets do not include allocation of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits investments, premiums and
reinsurance balances receivable, prepayments and other assets, due from related parties, and property and
gquipment, net, to the operating segments.

Segment liabilities do not include allocation of accounts and commission payable, reinsurance balances payable,
accrued expenses and other liabilities, due to shareholders® operations, surplus distribution payable and other
reserves to operating segments.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Insurance operations

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

Reinsurance commission income

Net underwriting result

General and administrative expenses and
impairment charge on available for sale

investment

Special commission income and other
income

Insurance operations” surplus

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Insurance operations
Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs
Reinsurance commission income
Net underwriting result

General and administrative expenses

Special commission income and other
income

Insurance operations’ deficit

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Medical Motor Others Total
SR'000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
2,266,987 529,999 397,348 3,194,334
2,265,987 364,752 66,465 2,697,204
2,430,258 428,105 87,263 2,945,626
(2,115,010) {323,079 (26,906) (2,464,995)
(120,201) (37,578) (29,906) (187,685)
- 39,327 45,675 85,002
195,047 106,775 76,126 371,948
(397,530)
69,329
49,747
Medical Motor Others Total
SKR'000 SR'000 SR000 SR'000
2,811,471 666,047 524,416 4,001,934
2,806,540 458,493 93,482 3,358,515
2,845,296 523,960 98,057 3,467,313
(2,578,340) (675,217) (15,145) (3,268,702)
(162,304) {34,058) (30,955) (227,317
20,970 33,405 56,505 110,880
125,622 {151,910) 108.462 82,174
(397,469)
66,075
(249,220)
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31, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments {Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

Insurance operations’ assets
Reinsurers' share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Unallocated assets

Insurance operations’ liabilities and
surplus

Gross unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Gross outstanding claims
Unallocated liabilities

As at 31 December 2015

Insurance operations' assels
Reinsurers” share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Unallocated assets

Insurance operations ' liabilities and
surplus

Gross unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Gross outstanding claims
Unallocated liabilities

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Medical Motor Others Total
SR’000 SR'000 SR*000 SR'000
- 50,389 485,994 536,383
3,099 87,584 505,258 595,941
109,797 9,949 21,590 141,336
2,273,007
3,546,667
926,951 167,962 534,338 1,629,251
- 11,058 25,526 36,584
536,346 247,263 540,347 1,323,956
556,876
3,546,667
Medical Motor Others Total
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR 000
- 77,523 635,635 713,158
27,353 87,015 556,946 671,314
137,520 14,955 29,332 181,807
- - - 2,881,273
4,447,552
1,091,222 258,450 704,776 2,054,448
- 15,502 40,813 56,315
823,776 256,209 584,803 1,664,788
- - - 672,001
4,447,552
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses
the existing organisational structure to meet strategic targets, The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic plan approved by the Board. The
Company is exposed to insurance, reinsurance, regulatory framework, credit, liquidity, foreign currency,
commission rate, and market risks.

Risk management structure

A cohesive organisational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor, and
control risks.

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralised oversight of Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary
approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Senior management
Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the
Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

Audit Commitiee and Internal Audit Department

Risk management processes throughout the Company are also insured by the Internal Audit Department which
examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Company’s compliance with such procedures. The Internal
Audit Department discusses the results of all assessments with senior management, and reports its findings and
recommendations directly to the Audit Committee.

The risks faced by the Company and the manner in which these risks are mitigated by management are set out
below:

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk that actual claims payable to contract holders in respect of insured events exceed the
carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or amounts of claims severity,
actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long term claims are different than expected. Therefore the
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient resources are available to cover these liabilities. The insurance
risk arising from insurance contracts is mainly concentrated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors, The Company underwrites mainly motor
and medical risks, These are regarded as short-term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settled
within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Motor

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of vehicles,
In recent years, the Company has only underwritten comprehensive polices for owner/drivers over 18 years of age.
Substantially all of the motor contracts relate to private individuals. The Company also has risk management
procedures to control cost of claims. The Company has reinsurance cover to limit the losses for any individual claim
to SR 750 thousand (31 December 2015: SR 750 thousand).

Medical

The Company's underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across the industry sectors and
geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions,
regular view of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. The
company does not have any reinsurance coverage for medical line of business.

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2. RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

a) Insurance risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate.
However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the
financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible
to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.
The general insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. A hypothetical 10% change in the
claims ratio would impact income by approximately SR 19,477 thousand (31 December 2015: SR 19,705 thousand)
annually in aggregate.

h) Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the
Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.
Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control
exposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant
portion of the reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss reinsurance contracts.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors the concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities and economic characteristics of reinsurers.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to the policyholders and as a result the
Company remains liable for a portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet
the obligations under the reinsurance agreements. The credit exposure in this connection is:

2016 2013
SR’000 SR'000
Middle East 176,498 180,215
Europe 419,443 491,099
595,941 671,314

c) Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions
e.g. capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies and to
enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise, The Company is not in compliance with solvency margin
requirement as prescribed by SAMA (also see note 33).

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
48




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

32, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum exposure to
credit risk to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

. The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are monitored on
an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure {o bad debts,

. The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

. The Company investment portfolio is managed by the investment officer in accordance with the
investment policy established by the investment committee,

. The Company, with respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets, is restricted to commercial
banks having strong financial positions and credit ratings.

. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial
position:

2016 2015
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance  Shareholders'
Operations  Operations  Operations  Operations

Note SR'000 SR000 SR'000 SR'000
Bank balances and cash 486,969 211,677 594,951 108,912
Time deposits 225,504 - 197,790 96,052
Investments 13 28,308 146,076 60,224 242,014
Statutory deposit - 150,000 - 100,000
Interest on statutory deposit - 11,072 - 7,757
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable 9 1,248,475 - 1,688,147 -
Advances to employees 14 7,738 - 8,760 -
Advances to suppliers 14 4,363 - 4,520 -
Accrued special commission income 14 5174 2,455 1,286 1,782
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims 11 {(a) 595,941 - 671,314 -
Due from related parties 10 2,065 - 72,606 -

2,604,537 521,280 3,299,598 556,517

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) '

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
z) Speciri commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market special commission rates, Floating rate instruments expose the company to cash flow
special commission risk, whereas fixed commission rate instruments expose the Company to fair value interest risk.

The Company is exposed to special commission rate risk on its certain investments, cash and cash equivalents, and
time deposits. The Company limits special commission rate risk by monitoring changes in special commission rates
in the currencies in which its investments are denominated.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of statements of insurance operations and the shareholders equity
to reasonably possible changes in commission rates of the Company’s term deposits; with all other variables held
constant.

31 December 2016

Currency Change in variable Impact on net loss
Saudi Riyal + 50 basis points SR 5,343

- 50 basis points SR (5,343)
31 December 2015
Currency Change in variable impact on net loss
Saudi Riyal + 50 basis points SR 4,637

- 50 basis points SR (4,637)

h) Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting afl similar
financial instruments traded in the market,

The Company has unquoted equity instruments carried at cost or indicative selling price, where the impact of
changes in equity price will only be reflected when the instrument is sold or deemed to be impaired and then the
staternent of income - shareholders’ operations will be impacted.

The sensitivity of the income on the assumed changes in the market prices of quoted available for sale investments
on the statement of shareholders comprehensive income / (loss) is set out below:

Effect on statement of
Change shareholders comprehensive
in market price income / (loss)
SR'000

2016 +5% 3,47

-5% {3,447)
2015 +5% 10,871

-5% (10,871)
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

32, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
i) Capital management

Capital requirements are set and regulated by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency. These requiretnents are put in
place to ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders' value,

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it is
incorporated. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain
restrictive provisions e.g capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the
insurance Companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

The Company maintains its capital as per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 table 3 and 4 of the
Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvency margin required to be maintained. According to the said
Article, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as
per SAMA Implementing Regulations:

Minimum Capital Requirement of SR 100 million
Premium Solvency Margin
Claims Solvency Margin

The Company uses Claims Solvency Margin Method for determining its solvency requirements. As at 31 December
2016, the solvency margin is less than the required minimum margin (also see note 33).

33, SOLVENCY MARGIN

During the year, SAMA issued a letter to the Company under Ref. 371000070025 dated 30 March 2016. The letter
highlighted the deteriorating solvency margin of the Company and the rectification measures to be taken by the
Company according to Article 68 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations. SAMA in its aforesaid letter
instructed the Company to meet the solvency margin requirement by 30 September 2016 and increase its statutory
deposit from 10% to 15% of the paid up capital before 21 April 2016. Further, SAMA directed the Company to
appoint a consultant to study the reasons for the deterioration of the financial position and formulate a strategy to
overcome the deterioration. The letter also indicated that detailed progress report on the consultant’s work, on a
monthly and quarterly basis, and final report should be submitted to SAMA. During the three-month period ended
30 June 2016, the Company increased the statutory deposit to 15% of the paid up capital, appointed a consultant and
started submitting the consultant’s monthly and quarterly reports to SAMA as advised. The Company was not able
to meet the solvency margin requirement by 30 September 2016 as instructed by SAMA and had not submitted the
final approved plan as required by the aforesaid letter. On 27 December 2016, SAMA issued another letter binding
the Company to provide an approved plan to meet the requirement of solvency margin by 18 January 2017 and take
necessary measures to ensure fulfilment of the rights of the policy holders. The detailed plan has subsequently been
provided to SAMA after approval of the Company’s board of directors, The Company continues to take the
necessary actions as advised by SAMA, through implementation of corrective action plan as advised by the
consultant and approved by the Company's board of directors, which is expected to gradually improve the
Company’s financial position and increase the solvency margin.

34. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Jumaada Al-Akhar 1438H
corresponding to 06 March, 2017.
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